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INTRODUCTION.

We were rather surprised when we read appellant's

original brief. The net result, after reading the last,

is a feeling of astonishment, not only that an appeal

should have been taken, but also that, with so many

attorneys apparently interested, so much could have

been printed with so little to assist an appellate court.

The most that can be said is that they have presented

for consideration everything that could be argued to a

jury in an attempt to win its sympathy. There is cer-

tainly nothing for the consideration of a court listen-

ing to an appeal in an equity case.



We find counsel attempting to testify, at this late

date, to their idea of appellant's character. (Br. p. 4.)

Where argument fails, we find that counsel for ap-

pellees are "contemptible", because they foiled appel-

lant in his scheme to defraud. We find the time worn

*' argument", employed before a jury, of attacking in-

surance companies, their tactics and motives.

We believe that everything which has been raised

in this reply brief has been fully covered, in as concise

a manner as possible, in the briefs filed by the various

appellees. We hesitate between this feeling and a

desire to be of any possible assistance to this court.

We do not like to give the impression that we consider

there is anything in this brief which merits further

reply, and yet we are reluctant to pass over some of

the glaring misstatements and the erroneous theories

of counsel. We are in a quandary as to whether or not

any further briefs in this matter will add sufficiently

to what has already been said to offset the additional

labor entailed in reading even a few pages.

While we considered it advisable to file separate

briefs originally, all of the appellees prefer to join

in this reply, to save the court from possible reitera-

tion and the necessity of devoting too much time to

reading our arguments. Our original briefs were filed

separately, not only to give the court the advantage

of any possible difference of approach to the prob-

lem, but also because there was some conflict of inter-

est in respect to technical defenses raised under the

terms of the various policies. There has never been

any difference among the appellees as to the funda-



mental issues of fraud and false swearing on the

part of appellant.

As we have pointed out, in reference to the various

claims of error urged by appellant, the best that can

be said in his favor is that there is some conflict in

the evidence. Any apparent conflict is created, either

by the testimony of parties employed and paid l)y

appellant or by the rebuttal testimony of appellant

and his too willing employees and supporters, Miss

Mitchell and Taylor. Where there is an actual con-

flict, it has been resolved against appellant by the

Chancellor. The decisions are uniformly against ap-

pellant's effort to set aside this decision, and this

court is so familiar with these authorities that we

shall quote from only two. The first of these decisions

is the latest expression of a Circuit Court of Ap-

peals, the second is a recent expression of the rule by

this court:

" 'It has long been established by this and other

federal courts that the findings of a chancellor on

conflicting testimony are presumptively correct,

and will not be overthrown, unless it is clear that

some serious mistake has been made in consid-

eration of the evidence. Tilghman v. Proctor,

125 U. S. 136, 149, 8 S. Ct. 894, 31 L. Ed. 6()4;

Karn v. Andresen, 60 F. (2d) 427, 429 (C. C. A.

8) ; Central Republic Bank & Trust Co. v. Cald-

well, 58 F. (2d) 721, 734 (C. C. A. 8; Coats v.

Barton, 25 F. (2d) 813, 815 (C. C. A. 8).' Nor-

wdch Union Indemnity Co. v. Simonds (C. C. A.

8), 65 F. (2d) 134, 135; Klaber v. Lakenan (C (\

A. 8), 64 F. (2d) 86, 90 A. L. R. 783: Woods-

Faulkner & Co. V. Michelson (C. C. A. 8), 63 F.



(2d) 569; Conqueror Trust Co. v. Fidelity & De-

posit Co. of Maryland (C. C. A. 8), 63 F. (2d)

833; Clements v. Coppin (C. C. A. 9), 61 F. (2d)

552."

Bourjois, Inc. v. Park Drug Co., 82 F. (2d) 468.

"It is well settled that the findings of the trial

court, based on conflicting testimony taken in

open court, will not be disturbed on appeal. John
T. Porter Co. v. Java Cocoanut Oil Co. (C. C. A.),

4 F. (2d) 476 (certiorari denied, 268 U. S. 697,

45 S. Ct. 515, 69 L. Ed. 1163) ; Gila Water Co.

V. International Finance Co. (C. C. A.), 13 F.

(2d) 1; United States v. United Shoe Mach. Co.,

247 U. S. 32, 41, 38 S. Ct. 473, 476, 62 L. Ed. 968,

in which the Supreme Court said: 'The testimony

was conflicting, it is true, and different judgments
might be formed upon it, but from an examination

of the record we cannot pronounce that of the

trial court to be Avrong. Indeed, it seems to us

to be supported by the better reason. We should

risk misunderstanding and error if we should

attempt to pick out that which makes against it

and disregard that which makes for it and judge

of witnesses from their reported Avords as against

their living presence, the advantage which the

trial court had'."

Clements v. Coppin, 61 F. (2d) 552.

While we believe that this rule definitely disposes

of this appeal, we shall briefly discuss some of the

points raised in the reply brief.



AS TO APPELLANT'S ARGUMENT AS TO INCENDIARISM.

Counsel are either laboring under a most serious

misunderstanding, or are deliberately trying to cloud

the issues in the following respects:

First, this is not a criminal trial;

Second, the mere fact that there is conflicting evi-

dence is not sufficient to justify a reversal;

Third, even granting (without conceding) that there

were errors in the admission of testimony, such errors

will not aid appellant in an equity appeal;

Fourth, that this action, and the defenses to it, are

based solely and only on written contracts of insur-

ance, and the violation by the insured of certain of the

terms and conditions contained therein.

Counsel state

:

"It is inconceiA^able that appellees could be-

lieve that the insinuations made in the oral argu-

ment are sufficient to convict the appellant of

incendiarism." (Br. p. 2.)

It is perhaps fortunate for appellant that it is not

necessary to argue this phase of the question. We

are concerned, not with the question of reasonabk'

doubt, but rather with whether or not there is any

evidence to support the findings of the Chancellor.

"While it is tacitly (if not openly) admitted throughout

the brief—and indeed such an admission is unavoid-

able—that this fire was incendiary, counsel assume the

perhaps unnecessary burden of trying to prove, by

argument, that appellant did not set the fire. In this

respect it is pointed out that the testimony (of a])-



pellant and his employee, Miss Mitchell) shows that

he was not the last person in the ''factory", that as a

matter of fact Miss Mitchell was. This limited term

is used to indicate not the building where the fire oc-

curred, but merely the upper floors. It is pointed out

that Miss Mitchell went upstairs and locked all the

windows, while appellant remained on the first floor.

It will be remembered that after this was done, they

locked the doors and left together. It is pointed out

that kerosene was habitually kept in this building

—

but there is no mention of the fact that it was kept

in a tank, in the hasement. (Tr. Vol. II, p. 566.) On
the night of the fire we find it on all floors, including

the first (w^here it was used so freely that it leaked

through onto merchandise in the basement), where one

of the fires was started. We find it on all the upper

floors—in drums which have had spikes driven into

them, to permit the free flow of the liquid, in pans,

on the stairs and floors, and on the merchandise. (See
—^'As to the Nature of the Fire", brief of Western

Insurance Company, pp. 9-13.) But the doors and

windows are still in the condition in which they w^re

left by appellant and Miss Mitchell

—

locked.

It is stated that appellant would have lost and

could not have profited by a fire. This statement is

merely one of counsel, who apparently have been un-

able to answer our showing that as a matter of fact

appellant w^ould have made a profit of at least $250,000

had this fire totally destroyed this building and its

contents. (See—"As to the Insurance Carried by

Appellant"—brief of Western Insurance Company,

pp. 7-8.)

I



It is stated that aiopellant had a prosperous busi-

ness and that he would haA^e been crazy to have a fire.

True, the figures that are quoted look most imposing,

but we find that appellant had considerable money

tied up in stock and machinery, and that there had

been additional merchandise ordered months before,

on genuine contracts. We find that the market was

falling, the only definite percentage being 16% from

October, 1929, until April, 1930. This decrease was

on merchandise which had already sustained a sub-

stantial drop in price. We find that before the fire

he was selling finished lined' hags for $30 a thousand

less than his claimed cost for the same hags, unfin-

ished and unlined. (Tr. Vol. Ill, p. 1628.) He was

also contemplating selling this business, and did so

after the fire. Under the circumstances it would not

appear so crazy to sell the stock and machinery to

the insurance companies and in addition to try for

a profit of $250,000. We know that this appellant did

not balk at other forms of fraud.

AS TO THE MODEL OF THE SECOND FLOOR.

Counsel say they are glad that we brought this

matter up on oral argument. It is also stated

:

''We may conclude this matter by stating that

appellees have not had the temerity to present

this matter at all in their briefs, where its weak-

ness would be readily apparent; but they at-

tempted to present it only on oral argiurieiit to

give the court an erroneous first impression m its

consideration of this case." (Br. p. 9.)
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This is a good example of the reliance which can be

placed upon statements contained in the briefs or in

the oral argmnent. We shall quote from the brief of

two of the appellees:

''We made a demonstration relative to Mr. Hy-
land's contention concerning the stock on the sec-

ond flo'or. In demonstrating his contention we had

an extra model of this floor eliminating all ma-
chinery and anything else that would necessitate

a deduction from the amount of floor space. We
placed 150 bales on this second floor. These 150

bales more than covered the entire area, including

that which we know was occupied by machines.
* * *

Perhaps an even better illustration would be in

line with our Exhibit JJJ. This was the exhibit

representing the second floor in accordance with

Mr. Hyland's testimony as to its contents. While
we do not know whether or not the models repre-

senting merchandise are still in position in this

model of the second floor, w^e have in evidence

photographs showing the result of attempting to

place this merchandise on that floor. An exam-
ination of these photographs will show the court

that it not only blocked all doors and windows,
covered all space occupied by machinery, but it

projected above the height of the walls. 2000 bales

of burlap would have filled two floors to the same
extent after removing all machinery and the stock

which was later found in the building and inven-

toried. These illustrations will probably give the

court a better idea of the meaning of this claim

relative to debris." (Appellee's Br. pp. 84-85.)

Appellant naturally did not include these exhibits

in those which he desired to present to this court, but

w^e insisted on bringing them up.



Counsel refer to, quote a portion of, and attempt to

explain a portion of the testimony of appellant be-

cause of which this exhibit was made. We shall quote
it in full

:

''On Monday, June 21, 1930, at the office of
McLaren, Goode & Co., in this city, at an arbitra-

tion proceeding on Use and Occupancy insurance,
the following is a correct reading of my testi-

mony as reported in Volume 2, page 231, of the

transcript in that proceeding:

'Q. You also had material on the other

floors, did you not?

A. Now, we will come to the second floor.

We had probably a half million bags piled in

the north end of that building, all loose, ready

for turning, and we had probably two or three

hundred thousand yards of baled burlap which

had not been opened, and we had probably 100,-

000 to 150,000 yards of burlap and cotton sheet-

ing—I will change that statement, if I may ; we
had 200,000 to 300,000 yards of burlap and cot-

ton sheeting which had been opened, the ends

of the bolts sewed and ready to go through the

sewdng machine, all on that floor, and we also

had probably twenty rolls of burlap which had

been rolled and ready to be processed through

the printing houses. That floor was quite well

filled with merchandise.'
"

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, p. 488.)

This court has seen the model and the photographs

which show the conditions which would have existed,

if appellant's testimony could be believed.

Even if we had not discussed this exhibit in our

briefs or on oral argument, it is discussed in the opin-

ion of the trial court

:
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''To contradict this testimony, plaintiff was con-

fronted with his testimony at the U. & O. hear-

ing, which was an arbitration proceeding involv-

ing other policies on which there had been a loss

due to the same fire. He had there testified with

some particularity that prior to the fire the sec-

ond floor was filled with merchandise and in gen-

eral described the quantity and type. In the

course of his cross-examination he in effect

adopted the testimony given at that hearing."

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, p. 194.)

''The quantities of merchandise which plaintiff

testified were on the second floor of the factory at

the U. & O. hearing were greatly exaggerated.

Defendants have prepared an exhibit to demon-
strate the physical impossibility of the truth of

this testimony. It would fill the floor with stock

to the height of the ceiling and above, leaving no
ro'om for aisles and the machinery on the floor

and for the employees to move about at their

work. This is not such an overvaluation as might
result from an honest mistake. Plaintiff as an
expert in the burlap business knew the space

which quantities of burlap occupy and also knew
the capacity of his O'Wti factory. Counsel for plain-

tiff argues that the U. & O. testimony is not a

definite statement but is merely an approximation
of the quantities. Unless one is testifying from a

computation all estimates of quantity are but ap-

proximations, but the one in question is so' far

removed from the possible contents that it is in-

credible that a man in plaintiff's position should
have offered it in good faith."

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, pp. 195, 196.)
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The trial judge heard this testimony and ohserved

appellant while he was being examined. Yet counsel,

who did not have this opportunity, now try to strain,

distort and explain this testimony. It has taken over

four years after the trial to work out this explanation.

It has taken that period of time, and the death of the

judge, to attack the attitude of that judge and his

alleged bias against appellant. We all knew that judge,

his tolerance and his "reluctance" to find any man
guilty of wilful and deliberate fraud, false swearing

and perjury. And yet, in their desperation and desire

to procure some money for such a man, they do not

hesitate to attack that judge. We say that no man
could have heard the testimony and observed the wit-

nesses on that trial without arriving at the same con-

clusion.

AS TO DEBRIS.

At the trial it was insisted that there were 100 tons

of this remains of merchandise. This was a little too

much for present counsel, so in the opening brief they

reduce this to 70 to 80 tons. We treated this at length

in the briefs of Millers National and Western Insur-

ance Companies under the heading ''As to Appellant's

Evidence as to the Amount of Loss or Damage", (pp.

82-85.)

Counsel realize the absurdity of their claims in re-

gard to this item and the question of merchandise

"obliterated". They cannot answer our figures show-

ing this. Therefore they state our treatment of this

subject is ridiculous, as they do not claim it was all
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merchandise. This and their ''contemptible" argu-

ments remind us of the small boy, whose retort is

''you're another".

What portion of this alleged 70 or 80 or 100 tons

do they claim represents merchandise '^ohliterated'',

^Hotally destroyed^' or '^burned out of sight" "^ What
type of merchandise did it represent '^

We desire this coui't to realize that throughout the

adjustment and the trial, and in our arguments and

briefs, we challenged proof, or argument, show^ing

what appellant claims this merchandise was. There

has never been one word to' explain this—except a

claim of $15,713.12 in the proofs of loss, later boosted

to $46,139.46, supposedly based on the figures of Hood
& Strong.

These accountants obligingly tried to explain it by

preparing a ''yardage and poundage" report. (Exhibit

30, Tr. p. 288.) In this they arrive at the astonishing

result that appellant should have had 494,000 yards of

material (of a value of $39,638.02) which he admit-

tedly never had. This material and this value (neither

of which existed) were, and must be, included in order

to arrive at the value of the stock claimed by appel-

lant. This material is set up as 37/10 burlap, and yet

the physical inventory taken at Sacramento Street on

September 30, 1929, shows that there was no burlap of

this grade at the plant. (Exhibit 98, Vol. Ill, p. 1397.)

The uncontradicted testimony of Rickards shows that

no such material was received subsequent to Septem-

ber 30. (Vol. Ill, p. 1219.) As a matter of fact, the

only material of this kind consisted of twenty-five
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bales at Sansome Street, and it was still there after

the fire. (Exhibit 82, Vol. Ill, p. 1302 and Exhibit I,

Vol. Ill, p. 1355.)

In their desperation counsel grasp at a straw and
claim that the trial court found there was merchandise

burned out of sight. They base this on:

''I believe that some of the stock was burned
out of sight but that the amount was small. // if

were necessary to determine the amount of the out

of sight loss, I should f},nd that it was the differ-

ence between the jierpetual inventory kept by

plaintiff as of the date of the fire and the mer-

chandise removed after the fire and counted by

Radford, or approximately the sum of $2,000.*******
The strongest evidence introduced in behalf of

plaintiff's contention that great quantities of stock

were obliterated, aside from the testimony of the

accountants, was the testimony as to the debris.

As to the quantity and character of the debris

there is serious conflict of testimony. In the li^ht

of the evidence which I have just discussed it is

incredible that the debris consisted to any large

extent of ash or stock burned beyond recognition."

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, p. 185.)

''Not only does the proof show negatively that

there w^as no substantial quantity of merchandise

obliterated by the fire, but it shows affirniatively

that the amounts claimed were fraudulently built

up.''

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, p. 186.)

"As further evidence that there was little or no

merchandise burned out of sight, the count of the
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bags in process of manufacture is important. The

records of the company show 190,571 bags in

process on the night of the fire. Radford's count

showed 189,392 identifiable after the fire, a loss of

less thanl%."

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, p. 187.)

Isn't this a pitiful showing on which to expect this

court to reverse this case and find that there was $46,-

139.46 worth of merchandise totally destroyed? Yet

on such argument, with no testimony to support it,

counsel ask this court to discredit the findings of a

judge Avho saw^ the witnesses, the building where the

fire occurred, the machinery involved in the fire, and

heard all the testimony. This is the net result of four

years of effort since the trial. As against this we have

the positive testimony of witnesses, as shown in our

earlier briefs under this heading.

AS TO DAMAGE.

This is fully discussed by us in the briefs of Millers

National and Western Insurance Companies under the

heading ''As to the Evidence of Actual Damage to the

Merchandise", (pp. 102-109.) No evidence was intro-

duced on the trial by appellant, except the reports of

accountants, purporting to show what should have

been in the building. We introduced positive, not spec-

ulative evidence as counsel contend, through disinter-

ested witnesses, that not over 25% of the merchandise

was damaged. We also introduced positive e^ddence

that the amoimt of damage was actually about $10,000.
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There is no attempt to answer this except to refer to

the "opinion" of Sugarman as to the percentage of

damage. It will be remembered that this party was
employed by appellant, that he was called as a witness

and gave no testimony which would support such an
opinion. It will also be remembered that his compen-

sation was to be based on a percentage of any amount
recovered, and that it was to his advantage to endeavor

to claim and recover for damage which did not exist.

"I had a sliding scale agreement with Mi-. Hy-
land as to my compensation for handling this loss.

That varied from 3 to 6 per cent. Well, I would
not say definitely as to whether that was to be

left to Mr. Hyland to determine, the amount ho

was to pay me. There was a kind of an under-

standing that it would be determined by the

amount of w^ork involved, that we would decide it

between us. No, sir, there was not any agreement

that I was not to be paid in the event of litigation.

I am positive of that."

(Rep. Tr. Vol. II, p. 1004.)

"Answ^ering your question 'Was the percentasio

of your compensation to be determined in any way

by the amount of recovery from the companies?'

at the time we discussed that we had no idea of a

lawsuit. If I recovered a larger amount—not re-

ferring now to litigation—my percentage would be

larger. Answering your question 'So it was to

your advantage to boost the amount of loss?' it

would have reacted to my advantage."

(Rep. Tr. Vol. II, p. 1008.)

In the briefs of Western and Millers National In-

surance Companies (pp. 76-88), we have discussed at
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length appellant 's evidence as to the amount of loss or

damage. In the same briefs (on pp. 102-108), we have

shown the evidence of the actual damage to the mer-

chandise. Counsel has attempted to answer this by

stating that plaintiff "believed material was burned

up in the fire" (Br. p. 81), and that the court must

have refused to believe the witnesses for the insurance

companies because the court found that there was out

of sight loss. They attempt to show that the actual

damage sustained was determined by the auction sale.

(Br. p. 84.) We have discussed the question of this

auction sale at length in the briefs of Western and

Millers National Insurance Companies, (pp. 134-139.)

It is interesting to note that during the trial there

was no attempt to show the court what merchandise

was damaged or destroyed, except Mr. Sugarman's
'* guess" (as counsel label it) as to the percentage of

damage. There is nothing in appellant's opening brief,

and, although we have challenged their argiunent,

there is not a single tvord in the reply hrief which

would enable this court to determine what, if any, mer-

chandise was '^damaged'\ *'ohliterated'' or ^'burned

out of sight'

\

AS TO THE RADFORD GRADING.

The arguments of counsel in this respect show how
desperate they consider their case, and how versatile

they are in changing their position when they cannot

answer our arguments. In their opening brief they

made a statement which was one of the few with which

we could concur:
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"Radford took the inventory of the salvaged

merchandise. (Vol. V, pp. 2503-2504.) After the

merchandise had been piled in the building he was
unable to go ahead and make an inventory and
state the correct grade of burlap, he was not an

expert in burlap. (Vol. V, p. 2525.) He was given

the assistance of a man named Gus Kraus; they

went straight through, and Mr. Kraus would state

the grade and count the nmnber of bolts and call

the total number of yards in each bolt to him, and

he would record it. (Vol. V, p. 2525.) He de-

manded prices on the inventoried merchandise

from Mr. Taylor. (Vol. V, p. 2528.) He took the

word of Mr. Kraus as to, the amount and (/vdde of

each lot of burlap. (Vol. V, pp. 2588, 2591.)

(Appellant's Br. p. 84.)"

(Appellee's Br. pp. 91-92.)

In order to show how much reliance the court can

place upon statements made by counsel for appellant,

we quote from their reply brief, pages 81 and 98:

''Pages 88-102. Any over-grading or over-pric-

ing of merchandise on the Radford inventory was

to the benefit of appellees and could not, even if

knowingly done, constitute false swearing. (There

is nothing in the evidence to indicate that any

over-grading was other than merely a mistake,

perhaps Radford's the employee of appellees; or

that any over-pricing was other than by mistake

or in accordance with an understanding between

Sugarman, appellant's adjuster, and Smith, ad-

juster for some of appellees.)"

^^In this matter, we are leginyimi to suspect

that there was a 'nigger in the woodpile' and that

possibly Radford planted this misgradmg n, an

effort to entrap appellant. We are certam that
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counsel for appellees was aware of the error in

grading some of the merchandise when he cross-

examined Gus Kraus (Vol. II, pp. 794-795), the

man who assisted Radford in the gradin^r, and we

are likewise certain from reading the same testi-

mony that Mr. Kraus was absolutely unaware of

the fact that any error had been committed. Rad-

ford was Smith's man. A^iij misgrading might

have been a clever idea of Mr. Smith.''

It will be noted that such statements and insinua-

tions are not supported by one word of evidence. We
covered this matter very thoroughly in the briefs of

the Western and Millers National Insurance Compa-

nies, (pp. 88-102.) In fact, they were so thoroughly

covered that counsel has been absolutely unable to an-

swer the testimony or our argument except by these

statements.

In addition they have adopted the absurd statement

of Sugarman in an attempt to show that by fraudu-

lently raising grades and prices, and attempting to

collect a larger amomit, they have actually benefited

the insurance companies. On pages 109 to 122 we have

discussed the question of the pricing of this inventory.

Counsel again have not been able to meet either the

testimony or the argiunent and content themselves

with referring again to Sugarman 's argument that this

could not be harmful to appellees and that there is no

evidence to show' that the increase in price and grade

was intentional or fraudulent. This is despite the fact

that we have pointed out that Hyland testified that he

knew the figures to be correct, that he w^as familiar

with values, that the values on the proofs of loss rep-
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resented landed costs. This is also despite the fact
that Mr. Smith testified that Hyland told him that
these figures were 100% right and that Smith warned
him that he would vitiate his contracts of insurance

by insisting upon proceeding along this line. We ask
the court particularly to refer to the comparison of

values set up in the tables on pages 122 and 123.

(Brief of Western Insurance Co.) The trial court

grasped this situation and has set it forth very clearly

and briefly:

'^The fraudulent padding commenced with the

pricing and grading of this inventory. Since

plaintiff was claiming, as the measure of his dam-
ages on the salvaged stock, the difference between

the value of this inventory and the proceeds of

the auction sale, it was to his interest to have the

valuation as high as possible. Radford was not a

burlap man and had one of plaintiff's employees

giA^e him the grades of the stock. Taylor, who
priced the inventory, admitted on cross-examina-

tion that he knew that the grades w^ere raised and

that there was no such quantity of certain hiuh

grades of burlap in the factory at the time, and

that the mistake in grading added some $6,000 ttv

the values. He said he merely priced the grades

the inventory called for. Hyland and Taylor were

familiar with the grades in the factory, for Hy-

land did the purchasing and Taylor ko\)\ the

books, and the evidence shows that Radford was

either deliberately misled as to grades or that the

mistake was permitted to remain with full knowl-

edge that it w^as there.

There was a deliberate deception as to ])rice.

The inventory was priced according to the Beniis

so-called large quantity price list. This was actu-
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ally a retail price list for use hy the Bemis Com-
pany's salesmen. Plaintiff was not entitled to re-

cover the retail price of the damaged stock. He
was entitled to recover its replacement cost as of

the time of the fire which he, as a large purchaser

could procure. Not only did plaintiff use the re-

tail price but he attempted to suppress quotations

as to price from other dealers and succeeded in

suppressing them and withheld information as to

his ow^n costs. Furthermore to this retail price

was added a half a cent a yard to cover cable

tolls, and other expenses which might have been

properly added to a landed cost but obviously not

to a retail price. As a matter of fact, plaintiff

first testified that the inventory had been priced

at landed cost but admitted under cross-examina-

tion that this Bemis price list was used. Plain-

tiff's adjuster testified that the matter of replace-

ment values was left to plaintiff who was, accord-

ing to his own testimony and that of others, a

shrewd buyer and knew burlap prices thoroughly.

He nevertheless used a price from two to four

cents a yard higher than the prices at which he
could have replaced his materials."

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, pp. 188, 189.)

AS TO DUPLICATION OF PURCHASES.

This matter was discussed at length on pages 46-76

of the briefs of the Millers National and Western In-

surance Companies. The trial court found:

''Defendant has established that at least $41,-

361.12 should be deducted from the values claimed
because of duplications. I shall discuss two of

these duplications because they illustrate the
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fraudulent manipulation of records by plaintiff
and also show the significance of the employment
of a different firm of accounts to build up values
on the basis of the Ernst & Ernst inventory. A
certain nmnbered stock sheet was given Hood «fe

Strong representing a purchase of burlap from
H. M. Newhall & Co. for $22,737 which arrived on
the 'Silver Elm' as a purchase subsequent to the

Ernst & Ernst inventory. The stock sheet was
originally dated in May 1929 ; the May was crossed

out and Jmie written in above. It was contended

that this material had not been counted by Ross-

low who prepared the Ernst & Ernst inventory

because it was on the dock at the time. The work
sheets of Rosslow shov^ that the full value of this

was taken into account and included in his total.

His work sheet gives the very number of the stock

sheet, mentions that it is a Newhall contract and

that it is recorded but not inventoried. The other

duplication which I shall discuss is of a purchase

of fifty bales of burlap. This is shown by a stock

sheet apparently dated June 20, 1929. However,

it is also numbered and the numbers on either side

show merchandise received in April. There is an

erasure under the month and on inspection it

shows that April has been erased and June typed

over it. The explanation offered that both these

lots of burlap were being held for Newhall Co. is

unsupported by the Newhall records and is en-

tirely unconvincing.
'

'

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, pp. 191-193.)

This is one of the major items considered in the re-

ply brief of appellant. We wish that this court would

examine this argimient and then read our argument m

connection with these various items, having the origi-

nal exhibits before them.
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It will be noted that the court found, and that it is

virtually admitted by appellant (in fact, it cannot be

denied), that there was a duplication of $22,737.12.

Counsel attempt to disprove the other items. This at-

tempt is based on the testimony of Taylor and Miss

Mitchell when called on rebuttal. The trial court had

this testimony in mind w^hen the judge stated ''The

explanation offered that both these lots of burlap were

being held for Newhall Co. is unsupported by the New-

hall Co. records and is entirely unconvincing." (Rep.

Tr. Vol. I, pp. 192-193.) Here again we have an ap-

parent, not a real, conflict which has been resolved

against appellant by the trial court.

In connection with Taylor's testimony it appears

that he took an actual physical inventory at the San-

some Street warehouse on October 21, 1929, and found

68,000 grain bags listed under lot 521, which was the

designation for manufactured bags for the year 1928.

Taylor admits this fact, and that also on the top of

the third page of this inventory there appears a nota-

tion in pencil, in his own handwriting, ''1928 remain-

der". This inventory was taken, and this notation

made, immediately following the fire, in the course of

Mr. Taylor's duties, and at a time when he, as an em-

ployee of appellant, was anxious to definitely and cor-

rectly establish the merchandise remaining on hand.

Later, on cross-examination, he states that he was

mistaken in making this entry, that, as a matter of

fact, this represented bales of burlap. Later, on re-

buttal, and after he had heard the testimony produced

by appellees, and after he had been forced to admit

changes in the records made by him, which he could
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not explain, and after his attention was called to the

testimony of Mr. Hart, and an explanation he had
given relative to this 68,000 grain bags, Taylor, in a

desperate attempt to save appellant, brought forth the

explanation upon which counsel now attempt to rely,

an explanation which he admitted he based only on

'' reasoning '\ Miss Mitchell, of course, attempted to

corroborate him, and the court rejected the testimony

of both of them.

This is the same Taylor who was acting as ware-

houseman and who issued warehouse certificates to

cover loans, showdng that these loans were secured by

merchandise in the warehouse when, as a matter of

fact, the records of the Hyland Bag Company kept by

Taylor showed that there was no such merchandise.

We shall not quote the testimony showing this, al-

though we examined him at some length relative to

some of these receipts. (Tr. pp. 1574-1578.)

This man could not give us any explanation for

changes in the stock sheets made by him, but he has

given us three different explanations, trying to show

fifteen months later that the original entry as to this

item, made in his own handwriting, was erroneous,

basing this explanation purely upon reasoning. It is

no wonder that the court rejected such testimony.

It is also to be noted that counsel carefully avoid

any reference to Hood & Strong's "yardage and

poundage" report. (Exhibit 30, Vol. I, p. 288, and as

amended. Exhibit 101, Vol. Ill, p. 1425.) This is not

to be wondered at w^hen w^e realize that included in

the purported value shown by Hood & Strong there is
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included 494,000 yards of 37/10 burlap supposedly at

Sacramento Street, of a supposed value of $39,683.02,

when the records of Hyland show that as a matter of

fact there was no such burlap at the plant, and that

there was onh^ 50,000 yards out of a total built up

yardage of 633,968 yards at the Avarehouse.

AS TO THE NEWHALL "FICTITIOUS CONTRACTS".

This was rather carefully covered in briefs of Mil-

lers National and Western Insurance Companies, (pp.

123-130.) The best that can be said in appellant's

favor in respect to these contracts is that there was

an apparent conflict between the evidence brought out

on cross-examination of Colbert and the attempted

rebuttal by appellant and the ever ready and willing

Miss Mitchell. The trial court resolved this conflict

against appellant and stated ''I believe Colbert's tes-

timony as to this contract". (Tr. p. 200.) Counsel at-

tempt to argue that these contracts Avere genuine be-

cause appellant, to protect himself, wrote a letter un-

der date of October 22nd, referring to these fictitious

contracts and incorporating a reference to ten genuine

contracts. This letter was handed to Colbert and by

him destroyed. It never found its way into the New-
hall records. It is also interesting to note that the

correspondence from Newhall (Exhibit 130, Vol. IV,

p. 1776, Exhibit 121, Vol. IV, p. 1785) w^hich w^as re-

ceived, and produced, by appellant, sets forth in detail

all of the genuine contracts, but the fictitious contracts

do not appear.
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Even the manufactured evidence of the letter writ-
ten by Hyland states that they desire to retain the
genuine contracts. As a matter of fact, appellant later

received—and eventually paid for—the merchandise
covered by the genuine contracts.

Why^ if these contracts tvere genuine, were they not

produced at the trial, where their production ivas con-

stantly demanded'! Why have they not been found
during the more than four years tvhich have elapsed

since the trial, and why were they not produced before

this court with the request that it determine that there

were actually such contracts, and that they tvere

genuine ?

Under the law of this state it is presumed that

where a party conceals or fails to produce evidence

which is available it must be presumed that it would

be detrimental to him if produced. It is also a well

established rule of law that where a party fabricates

or manufactures evidence, testimony produced by him

must be viewed with suspicion.

''The fabrication of testimony is always a bad^'c

of weakness in a case, and when clearly estab-

lished justifies a conclusion of fraud in the entire

case. Allen v. United States, 164 U. S. 492, 499,

500, 17 S. Ct. 154, 41 L. Ed. 528; McHuoh v. Mc-

Hugh, 186 Pa. 197, 40 A. 410, 41 L. R. A. 805, 65

Am. St. Rep. 849; Nowack v. Metro])o]itim St.

Ry., 166 N. Y. 433, 60 N. E. 32, 54 L. R. A. 592,

82 Am. St. Rep. 691; B. & 0. R. Co'. v. Rambo

(C. C. A.), 59 F. 75."

Gung You v. Nagle, 34 F. (2d) 848 (C. C. A. 9).
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AS TO FRAUD AND FALSE SWEARING.

We must admit that it is extremely difficult for us

to follow the logic of the argument advanced in this

brief. On page 78 it is stated

:

''The maxims 'He who seeks equity must do

equity' and 'he who seeks equity must come with

clean hands', have no application against appel-

lant in this case."

Counsel also argue and cite cases to support the

claim that perjury committed during the trial would

in no way affect the right of appellant to recover.

One of these cases we have been unable to find due

to the fact that the citation is apparently erroneous.

Of course, it is a matter of common knowledge that

we can find decisions of some court on any side of

any subject. Such decisions are clearly against the

weight of authority and are absolutely opposed to all

of the Federal decisions. In addition it is incon-

ceivable that an equit}^ court would permit recovery

by a plaintiff admittedly guilty of perjury in an at-

tempt to establish the amount of his claim. This en-

tire argument of counsel is directed to the fact that

the provisions of the policy refer only to the proof

of loss, yet the conditions of the policies under con-

sideration vary from those involved in the cases cited

by counsel for appellant in that they provide that the

entire policy shall be void "in case of any fraud or

false swearing by the insured touching any matter

relating to this insurance or the subject thereof

whether before or after a loss". But, strange as it

may seem, counsel are not content with such an argu-

ment.
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Despite the fact that the provisions of the polic}-,

which are statutory and adopted by the legislature

of this state as the only form of insurance that can
be written, provide that any false swearmg voids the

policy, counsel set forth one of the weirdest argu-

ments which it has ever been our pleasure to read:

"In another view of this case it may even be
said that the provision in these policies of insur-

ance for forfeiture for fraud and false swearing
have no application to proofs of loss, but that

any false swearing to be a ground of forfeiture

must be in reference to some matter entering

into or pertaining to the contract of insurance

itself. In this regard the view is that upon the

occurrence of a loss, the right of the insured be-

comes vested, and his rights in California cannot

be forfeited for any statements thereafter per-

taining to the loss. None of the higher courts of

California have passed on this question, but so

far as we have been able to ascertain it has not

been necessary for them to do so. We do not

believe there is any case in California reports

where the insured has been deprived of his in-

surance by false swearing as to his loss.

The provisions in the policies in the case at bar

cover false swearing relating to the insurance or

the subject thereof. A reasonable construction

is that the fraud or false swearing, though it

maij he done after the loss, must concern the in-

surance or the insured propekit before the loss.

Nothing is said about a false claim or proof of

loss."

(Br. pp. 73-74.)
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Naturally there are no authorities cited to sup-

port such a contention and we can rest assured that

no court would enunciate such a principle, otherwise

comisel, who have shown themselves to be indefati-

gable in their zealous search of any wording of any

decision which might in any way support their con-

tentions, would have produced any decision which had

the slightest leaning toward such an argument.

As directly opposed to this argument this matter

has been squarely passed upon by our District Court

of Appeal in a case in which a hearing was denied

by the Supreme Court. It is stated

:

'

' Under the provisions of the policy in the pres-

ent case, wilful destruction of the property on the

part of the insured, or wilful and false statements

made hy him on his proof of loss tvith intent to

defraud the insurance oompany, tvill totally avoid

the policy and relieve the insurer from all liahil-

ity thereunder. (Pedrotti v. American Nat. Fire

Ins. Co., 90 Cal. App. 668 (266 Pac. 376); 33

C. J. 19, sec. 667; 6 Cooley's Briefs on Insurance,

p. 4938; 7 Cooley's Briefs on Insurance, p.

5858.)" (Italics ours.)

Singleton v. Hartford Fire Ins. Co., 105 Cal.

App. 320.

We have already pointed out that the Supreme
Court of the United States, and the various Circuit

Courts of Appeals have uniformly reached the same

decision.

It is not our intention to burden this court with a

detailed discussion of the fraudulent claims set forth

in the proof of loss. To very briefly point out a few
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of these, it appears that the hicrease in the g-radiii- of

the burlap from 36-8 to 36-9 and 40-8 to 40-10 added
a total of $6175.06. In additioii, the increase in unit

cost as claimed in the proof of loss involves an in-

crease of over $20,000 in values as compai-ed witli

actual values. This is clearly set forth in the re-

capitulation of Defendant's Exhibit UUU. (Rep. Tr.

Vol. V, p. 2723.) In this connection it will be re-

membered that R. V. Smith testified that the unit costs

used by him were high, but even using these unit

costs we find that the padding of this proof of loss

by fraudulently increasing grades and prices results

in an increased claim of value of this merchandise

amounting to $26,365.32 out of a total claim of $73,000.

In addition to this, we find that there has been a

claim on each of the items enumerated in the ]u'0()f

of loss varying from 25 to 90%, whereas as a mat-

ter of fact the positive testimony of numerous wit-

nesses shows that not to exceed 25% of the stock was

actually damaged. We have already pointed out that

there is no attempt to attack the figures of tlie ad-

juster, Smith, showing that as a matter of fact the

actual loss sustained by reason of this fire amounted

to only $10,000 instead of the $73,000 originally

claimed by appellant.

In this connection it is sufficient to call the atten-

tion of the court to the fact that the trial couii

found

:

''The fahe sivearing in the proof of loss is,

however, saficieni in itself to defeat recovery and

the fraud in connection with the other claims of

loss and the testimony of the plaintiff at the trial
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are merely cimiulative in their effect. In consid-

ering this defense it must be remembered that this

is a suit in equity with its historic requirement

that he who seeks equitable relief must come into

court with clean hands."

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, p. 181.)

Upon the petition for rehearing which was based

largely on the ground the court had failed to find that

the fraud and false swearing was wilful and inten-

tional, the court stated:

*'In the light of the argument upon the motion

for new trial, there are two points in my opinion

which I wish to clarify. * * * Second, in

order to avoid any i)ossible misunderstanding, I

find that plaintiff was guilty of wilful and inten-

tional fraud and false swearing in making his

proofs of loss."

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, p. 232.)

Appellant cites the case of Young v. California

Ins. Co., 46 Pac. (2d) 718 (App. Reply Br. pp.

76-77), to the effect that the companies waived fraud

and false swearing in the proofs of loss because they

did not then object to it. It is an inherent quality

of fraud that the parties on whom it is being prac-

ticed do not know about it, and if they do not know
the fraud it is obvious that they cannot object to it.

This has always been recognized in all branches of

law. For instance, the statute of limitations does

not run against fraud until it is discovered. The
Young case cited by appellant is therefore not sound

law generally, but it especially is inapplicable in Call-
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fornia because it is based upon a dijfferent policy than
the California standard form. In the California

standard form policy there is the following provision

:

"Nonwaiver by appraisal or examination. This
company shall not be held to have waived any
provision or condition of this policy or any for-

feiture thereof, by assent to the amount of the

loss or damage or by any requirement, act or

proceeding on its part relating to the appraisal or

to any examination herein provided for."

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, pp. 313, 314.)

Not only does the Young case admit that the coui-t

is *'not unmindful of the fact that there are respect-

able authorities holding" to the contrary of that opin-

ion, but it is admitted in that opinion that there is a

particular exception under two instances as follows:

"In order to constitute a waiver in such cases,

however, it must appear that the company had

knowledge of such defenses at the time of re-

quiring the additional proof. And the parties

may validly contract that a demand for proofs

or for additional proofs shall not effect a waiver

and, where it is so provided, calling for addi-

tional proofs does not waive a defense of delay

or misrepresentation.
'

'

This latter specific provision is in the California

standard form policy.

The same statement is found in 7 Couch Cyc of

Insurance Lauf, Sec. 1596, p. 1597.

Appellant further cites the cases of Goldhcrn v.

Provident Washington Ins. Co., 87 S. E. 1077-1079

(Ga.) ; Dietz v. Providence Washington Ins. Co., 11
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S. E. 50, 58; Third Nat!. Bank v. Yorkshire Ins. Co.,

268 S. W. 445, 449, as authoritv to the effect that a

plamtiff does not forfeit his right to recover under a

policy for fraud and false swearing after the loss.

These cases are isolated cases and are directly con-

trary to the rule established in the federal courts. In

addition to the authorities heretofore cited in our

briefs, and also in the opinion of the trial court, we

refer the court to 26 C. J., page 382, for the general

rule upon the subject as follows:

^' There is usually a provision in policies of

fire insurance that any fraud or false swearing

by insured relating to the loss, or in the proofs

of loss, will forfeit any right of recovery under

the policy. Such a provision is valid and en-

forceable. (Claflin V. Commonwealth Ins. Co.,

110 U. S. 81, 3 S. Ct. 507, 28 L. Ed. 76; Perry v.

London Assur. Corp., 167 Fed. 902, 93 C. C. A.

302 ; Weide v. Germania Ins. Co., 29 F. Cas. No.

17,358, 1 Dill. 441; Huchberger v. Merchants' F.

Ins. Co., 12 F. Cas. No. 6,822, 4 Biss. 265; Geib v.

International Ins. Co., 10 F. Cas. No. 5,298, 1 Dill.

443), and in order to defend on this ground the

insurer is not required to tender back to insured

the premium which he has paid. (American Ins.

Co. V. Paggett (Ind. A.), 128 N. E. 468.) Ac-

cordingly a fraudulent overvaluation in the proofs

or statements of loss will defeat recovery under
the policy (G-eib v. International Ins. Co., 10 F.

Cas. No. 5,298, 1 Dill. 433; Howell v. Hartford
F. Ins. Co., 12 F. Cas. No. 5,780 ; Huchberger v.

Home F. Ins. Co., 12 F. Cas. No. 6,821, 5 Biss.

106; Sibley v. St. Paul F. & M. Ins. Co., 22 F.

Cas. No. 12,830, 9 Biss. 31)."
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The claim of appellant that he is free to make use

of the processes of the court to file a false and fi-audu-

lent claim, and to ask the intervention of equity on

his behalf, while he is attempting to deceive the court

with false and perjured testimony, is so utterly ridicu-

lous as hardly to call for any answer. The State of

California is just as much interested in fraud com-

mitted in preparing the proofs as it is in the prepa-

ration of the contract, and it is just as much con-

cerned with fraud or false swearing as the basis of

a suit filed under the policy—in fact, more so—as it

is if such was made in the proof of loss. The matter

is well summed up in the case of

Mazzella v. Hanover Fire Ins. Co., 174 S. E.

521,

where the plaintiff contended that he could not be

defeated in his action for a false and fraudulent claim

in court because the claim as finally proved was more

than the face of the policy, but the court said

:

''This reasoning will not do. The excessive

figure was obviously intended for its effect in

recovering the amount of the policy first by nego-

tiation with the company, and failing in that, by

jury trial. We cannot avoid the conclusion that

this claim was intentionally excessive and that as

such it voids the policy."

We specially call the Mazzella case to the attention of

this court because its facts ahnost exactly parallel the

facts of this case. The fire was a set fire, and while

Mazzella proved that he was not present at the tim(>

the fire started but was visiting a sistei- in another

town, the court makes this statement:
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''The proof does not connect Mazzella with the

origin of the policy in a manner sufficient to serve

the defendants beyond furnishing a strong back-

ground for the charge of false swearing."

For the same reason, like facts were shown and ad-

mitted into the record by the trial court in the instant

case.

As said by the United States Supreme Court in

Claflin V. Commonwealth Ins. Co,, 110 U. S. 81,

28 L. Ed. 76,

where the claimant testified falsely at the trial:

''A false answer as to any matter of fact mate-

rial to the inquiry knowingly and wilfully made
with intent to deceive the insurer would be fraud-

ulent. If it accomplished this result, it would be

a fraud effected; if it failed, it would be a fraud

attempted. * * * No one can be permitted to say

in respect to his own statements upon a material

matter, that he did not expect to be believed. * * *

False statements wilfully made under oath in-

tended to conceal the truth on these points con-

stitute an attempted fraud by false swearing

which was a breach of the conditions of the policy

and constituted a bar to the recovery of the insur-

ance.
'

'

This vigorous statement by our Supreme Court is

all the answer that is needed to the claim of plaintiff

that he is ''at liberty" to bring a false and fraudulent

claim into court and to swear falsely in support of it

without voiding his policy.
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THE FAILURE TO SECURE AN APPRAISAL WAS ATTRIBU-
TABLE TO THE INSURED HYLAND AND TO HIS AP-
PRAISER, COLBERT, AND THEREFORE APPELLANT COULD
NOT MAINTAIN A SUIT ON THE POLICY.

The legislature has established by law the California

standard form policy. In this fonn it adopted as the

public policy of the State of California the principle

of arbitration by an appraisal of insurance losses. It

is provided in the California standard form policy

that the insured must on demand of the insurer ap-

point a competent and disinterested appraiser and

that the appraisers of the two parties shall then choose

a competent and disinterested umpire, and that the

three so selected shall appraise the loss.

Under the provisions of the policy the insured is

given the right to bring a suit only when the failure

of the appraisal is not attributable either to him or to

his appraiser. Unless he has fully complied with these

provisions o'f the policy, he may not bring a suit on

the policy.

The principle of arbitration is now thoroughly en-

grafted as part of the law of California, not only in

insurance matters but by a general arbitration statute.

1927 Laws of California, p. 404;

Sec. 1280, Code of Civil Procedure, et seq.

It was alleged as a defense by the primary insur-

ance companies that 'Hhe appraisement was not had

due to the acts of the plaintiff and the appraiser a])-

pointed by him". That much was known at the tune

the trial Started. The attitude of Hyland's appraiser,

Colbert was such that there was no doubt in the mmd

of the appraiser appointed by the company that he



36

would not agree to any competent disinterested um-

pire, but the reason for such attitude was not at that

time known. But during- the trial Colbert broke down

under cross-examination and confessed himself to' be

entirely under the control of Hyland, confessed that

he was receiving secret commissions from Hyland on

sales of goods to Hyland by Newhall, Colbert's em-

ployer, and confessed that subsequent to the fire, at

the bidding of Hyland, he had aided Hyland in draw-

ing up six fictitious contracts to enable Hyland to

show an exaggerated and fictitious loss in his use and

occupancy insurance arbitration, that within thirty-

six hours of the fire Colbert had asked Logie, a fore-

most authority on burlap prices on the Pacific Coast,

not to give out any prices on burlap in connection with

the Hyland loss.

Finally, Colbert confessed that during the course of

this trial he had again aided Hyland in redrafting

the fictitious contracts, changing only the price for use

in this trial.

And yet appellant argues in his reply brief that

Colbert was a ''disinterested" appraiser. Realizing

the weakness of his argument he argues that if not

actually disinterested, that anyway he was entitled to

have an appraiser who was in a measure biased and

who should show an interest. He then argues that he

is not bound by the acts of such an appraiser. He cites

in support of his contentions that he is not bound by
the failure of the appraisement the case of Norwich

Union Fire Ins. Society v. Cohn, 68 F. (2d) 42,

C. C. A. 10th. It is there said:
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''There can no longer be any doubt as to the
validity of the appraisal clause in fire insurance
policies. The insured, upon seasonable demand,
must comply therewith or there can be no recov-

ery. Hamilton v. Liverpool & L. & G. Ins. ('o.,

136 U. S. 242, 10 S. Ct. 945, 34 L. Ed. 419; Aetna
Ins. Co. V. Murray (C. C. A. 10), 66 F. (2d) 289;
St. Paul Fire & Marine Ins. Co. v. Eldracher
(C. C. A. 8), 33 F. (2d) 675; Phoenix Ins. Co. v.

Everfresh Food Co. (C. C. A. 8), 294 F. 51."

The court then decided in that case that having ''in

good faith" entered into one appraisal and there hav-

ing been a failure of an appraisement award 'UvitJwut

his fault'\ he was not prevented from bringing suit

and it was not necessary that he enter into a second

appraisement. With this latter contention we are in

entire agreement. There was no second agreement

asked in the instant case and none could legally be

asked because if an insured in good faith appoints an

appraiser and the appraisement fails for reasons en-

tirely outside of the control of the insured, he is not

obligated to enter into a second one, and the policy

provides that he may bring suit in such event.

But such v/ere not the facts in this case. It is spe-

cifically found by the trial court (Rep. Tr. p. 197,

Vol. I) :

''The vice in appointing Colbert lay in the fact

that his connection mth plaintiff was secret and

tainted with fraud."

Appellant never at any time "in good faith" a])-

pointed an appraiser and attempted to have an ap-

praisal. As said in the Norwich Union case, supra

:
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''Upon demand the insured must in good faith

comply therewith ; he must name a competent and

disinterested appraiser and must not directly or

indirectly prevent the making of an award."

When appellee's appraiser, Maris, accepted Col-

bert's nomination of Logie as an umpire, Colbert dis-

covered that Logie did not believe there could be any

out of sight loss from such a small fire in view of the

fact that burlap will not burn out of sight in that kind

of a tire. liOgie testified

:

"Mr. Colbert replied that he was required to

'consult' in regard to that and later on in the day
he phoned and told me that I had not better

serve." (Tr. Vol. IV, p. 2162.)

Whom would he "consult" except Hyland^ particu-

larly in view of their close fraudulent connections?

Appellant quotes the case of Nortvich Union Fire

Ins. Society v. Cohn, supra, to the effect that the fault

of an appraiser is not the fault of the party appoint-

ing him, but that case used such phraseology only in

coimection with an appraisement entered into "in good

faith" by the insured. It did not refer to an appraise-

ment such as this that was entered into in fraud.

Appellant has not cited, one case that upholds his

contention that an insured need only defeat an ap-

praisal in order to he allotved to hring his suit. He so

contends on page 30 of his brief when he states:

"That without regard to appraisement, whether

completed or not, the loss shall be payable in 90

days after the receipt of the preliminary proofs

of loss."
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We challenge appellant to cite any authority constru-

ing a policy such as is the subject of the litigation in

this case where an insured acted in bad faith and did

not appoint a competent and disinterested appraiser.

Such a holding would nullify the arbitration clause in

the policy. Any insured could prevent the appraise-

ment by the mere device of appointing and controlling

a servile or crooked appraiser.

For the first time the appellant, with new counsel,

is raising the issue that Maris was not a competent and

disinterested appraiser. Such issue was never raised

during the trial and the case was tried only to' deter-

mine whether Colbert was a competent and disinter-

ested appraiser, he being the only appraiser as to

whom such issue w^as raised. Neither in his pleadings,

at the trial, nor on motion for new trial did appellant

ever claim that Mr. Maris was not a competent and

disinterested appraiser. Appellant now claims that

there was no evidence on the disinterestedness of Mr,

Maris. This is not correct. The evidence is to this

effect, that Maris was an independent appraiser and

adjuster, maintaining offices in San Francisco. He

was independently chosen by six primary companies

to represent them as an appraiser in this case. There

is no evidence that he ever represented anyone of them

in any case before, either as an appraiser or as an ad-

juster. Appellant himself placed in evidence the letter

of Mr. Maris to Colbert, dated Tune 7, 1930, which

stated (Tr. Vol. Ill, p. 1283)

:

''Being entirely disinterested, the outcome of

the proposition submitted to us as appraisers is
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of no moment to me, yet it seems unfortunate that

it was apparently impossible foT you to consider

anyone as umpire unless that one was in some way
connected with or beholden to the insured, their

attorneys, your cood self or the finn you repre-

sent. In closing", may I express the opinion that

the failure to have and complete this appraise-

ment is not attributable to me."

Furthermore, the correspondence immediately pre-

ceding the quotation cited above indicates that Mr.

Maris demonstrated his disinterestedness by nominat-

ing people whom his investigation disclosed to be en-

tirely disconnected with any of the parties, and some

of whom he didn't even know, but relied upon recom-

mendations of others of their disinterestedness and

their competency. This in itself demonstrates his dis-

interestedness. The evidence placed in the record by

the plaintiff himself is sufficient to sustain the finding

that the defendant companies appointed a competent

and disinterested appraiser, even if that matter were

in issue.

Plaintiff cannot raise such an issue for the first

time in the appellate court, and certainly his claim

that there is no evidence shomns: the disinterestedness

of Maris is not correct. Plaintiff supplied the evidence

himself.

The utter unreliability of appellant's brief is shown

by the fact that on page 23 he argues that Colbert was

competent and disinterested because '

' such competency

and disinterestedness is presumed". On page 28 he

states that there must be proof that the appraiser ap-
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pointed by the defendants was competent and disin-

terested and that as no proof had been made of this

''the inference is to the contrary".

Appellant admits on page 26 of his reply brief that

our citations of California authorities hold that unless

the insured in good faith makes an effort toward se-

curing an appraisement when demanded by the in-

surer, he cannot bring an action on the policy. How-
ever, he arg-ues, these decisions were on policies prior

to the California standard form. He cites no authority

holding to the contrary under the California standard

form, and such argument is utterly unconvincing bo-

cause if the California courts held that the pro^dsion

for an appraisement was binding and a condition prec-

edent to institution of suit in the case of contracts

draw^n up by the insurance company, how could such

decision be any the less applicable when the policy is

not drawn up by either of the parties but is enacted

by the legislature and required as a part of the law

and public policy of the State of California? Cer-

tainly, when using the same phraseology the legisla-

ture intended to have the same interpretation of the

policy and the courts have so held.

''After the adoption of the Standard form of

policy the law of waiver and estoppel remains the

same as before upon the subject."

Baulet V. Northwestern Ins. Co., 157 Cal. 21.').

In the case of Old SausaUto Land Co. r. Union Jus.

Co., 66 Cal. 253, it is particularly pointed out that the

policy required an adjustment "or a fair effort on the

part of the assured to obtain it", or else no cause of



42

action arose. There is no reason for construing the

standard form policy any differently.

It hardly seems possible that a])pellant has read the

opinion of the trial court and the findings of the trial

judge in connection with the Colbert transaction. Over

six pages of the transcript are devoted to that portion

of the trial court's findings and opinion. (Vol. I, pp.

196-203.) The argument of appellant takes the form

purely of assertion and reiteration, without answering

the damning evidence summed up by the court and his

findings that Colbert's connection with appellant was

secret and tainted with fraud, that Colbert was not

disinterested, that Colbert was in the secret pay of

appellant, that appellant had bribed him and that the

appellant also used Colbert as a tool in his attempt to

obtain an excessive award for his loss at the U. & O.

hearing.

In his reply brief appellant refers to his payments

to Colbert as being '^gratuities". (Reply Brief p. 19.)

In gratitude for what, was appellant giving gratuities

to Colbert? Could it not have been for value received?

But merely calling it "gratuities" does not make it

any the less a bribe.

Appellant's defense of the fictitious contract is cer-

tainly unique.

Appellant claims (Reply Brief p. 10) that the ques-

tion of the fictitious contracts is wholly collateral and

that the weight of the e^ddence is that there were no

fictitious contracts. These contracts were directly in

point, proving the contention of the primary insurance

companies that plaintiff had not appointed a disinter-
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ested appraiser and had prevented the appraisement.

It was evidence of a relationship of fraudulent con-

spiracy between Hyland and Colbert. Appellant at-

tempts to justify his claim that these contracts were

not fictitious by quoting his own letter, which he wrote

as a self-serving- alibi, addressed to Newhall & Co. and

delivered personally to Colbert (and which Colbert

tore up). He next quotes his own testimony in which

he categorically denied the making of these fictitious

contracts and claimed that he considered them at all

times bona fide contracts.

Now, it is pertinent to remark that not only did

plaintiff deny that these contracts were fictitious and

assert that they were bona fide contracts, but at the

same sitting he also contradicted the testimony of wit-

ness after witness concerning all of the major issues

that developed at the trial. This was near the end of

the trial when he took the stand in rebuttal. Begin-

ning at page 3231, Vol. VI of the record, he categor-

ically denied the testimony, not only of Colbert, but

also the testimony of Captain Sullivan (p. 3241), the

testimony of Fire Marshal Kelly (p. 3242), the testi-

mony of R. V. Smith (p. 3261) and the testimony of

Mr. Grove (p. 3279). Some of these categorical de-

nials of the plaintiff conflicted with positive testimony

given by disinterested witnesses fortified by their writ-

ten memoranda made at the time of the occurrences.

His contradiction of R. V. Smith was in part con-

cerning the testim.ony of Mr. Smith which was based

directly upon a memorandum made at the time of con-

versation with Hyland. This rebuttal testimony of the
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plaintiff could not be believed by any fair-minded

judge. He simply added perjury on perjury.

His denial of making these fictitious contracts was

the most incredible of all. This court did not witness

the scene in the courtroom as did the trial judge when

Colbert was recalled on cross-examination and con-

fessed in open court that he was a felon, a knave, and

an ingrate. He confessed that he had subjected him-

self to danger of criminal prosecution in aiding Hy-

land in preparing these fictitious contracts for use in

collecting insurance. He confessed that after thirteen

years as head of the import department, during which

time he had enjoyed the confidence of his employers,

the H. M. Newhall & Co., that he had betrayed them

and had accepted secret commissions from Hjdand. He
confessed that he was under the domination of Hyland

and even during the course of the pending trial had

aided him in remaking the fictitious contracts with a

difference in price ; and, finally, that he had tendered

his resignation to H. M. Newhall & Co. No fair-

minded judge could find other than did the trial judge

in this case (Vol. I, p. 199) :

"In the face of the e\ddence, plaintiff's con-

tention that these contracts were valid is incredi-

ble."

And as to the conflict between Colbert and Hyland

the trial judge stated (Rep. Tr. Vol. I, p. 200)

:

''I believe Colbert's testimony as to this trans-

action."

These contracts were not merely collateral. The trial

judge admitted the evidence regarding these fictitious
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contracts because they showed that ''the appraiser was
not only not a disinterested one, but that he was fully

cooperating- with plaintiff in his fraudulent scheme".

(Rep. Tr. Vol. I, p. 200.)

The findings of the trial court should not be over-

turned where there is evidence of such startling nature

to sustain them.

AS TO OTHER MISSTATEMENTS IN APPELLANT'S BRIEF.

We have already pointed out to the court a number

of misstatements by counsel for appellant. In our

opening brief we pointed out nmnerous other misstate-

ments and attempted to excuse them on the ground

that counsel had not sat through the trial and was

therefore probably somewhat unfamiliar with the evi-

dence. We cannot excuse these on the same ground.

We have picked out only a few O'f these at random and

will call them to the attention of the court.

It is stated on page 10 of the reply brief that as to

the fictitious contracts ''no charge was there made

(that is, in the use and occupancy matter) that they

were fraudulent or invalid in any respect". There is

no such testimony in this case, and we believe that we

have thoroughly convinced this court that these con-

tracts were fictitious.

It is stated on pages 17 and 18 that

:

"We believe it is significant that there was no

testimony introduced that Newhall & Co. did not

receive material such as was called for by these

allei^ed fictitious contracts, and likewise it is siu-
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nificant that they did not permit appellant's ac-

countant to make a general examination of their

records."

In the first place, any evidence as to what Newhall &

Co. may have received certainly would not be admis-

sible. They were among the largest dealers in burlap

on the coast, and the mere fact that they may have re-

ceived two oT three million yards, or even larger quan-

tities of burlap, would not in any way tend to prove

or disprove the issues in this case.

As to the second portion of this statement, it can be

nothing more noT less than deliberate, as it appears

that the only restrictions that Mr. Newhall put on

Parker was that the examination was to be made in

the office of their accountants, and that they would

submit any docmnents Parker wanted. When he con-

veyed this information to Mr. Schmulowitz, the latter

instructed Parker to drop the matter. (Tr. Vol. YI,

p. 3310.)

On pages 20 and 21 it is claimed there was nothing

secret about the allowance from Hyland to Colbert.

This statement is based solely on the fact that there

is a record of these allowances on Hyland 's books. It

is further stated that it is not apparent that Newhall

& Co. ever suffered in the slightest from these rela-

tions between Colbert and Hyland, although, as we

have pomted out, they did directly result in the can-

cellation of one contract and the reselling of the same

merchandise to Hyland at a considerably lower figure.

(See smiunary of testimony. Brief of Western Ins.
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Co., pp. 64-65.) What other damage may have been
suffered by Newhall & Co. as the result of allowing

Colbert commissions we do not know.

On page 57 it is stated that

:

''It is apparent that the suggestion of Hood &
Strong's report, Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 2, arose

not from appellant but from an employee of a

reputable accounting finn, Mr. Parker of Ly-
brand, Ross Bros. & Montgomery."

It is true that Mr. Parker had at one time been an

employee of that firm, but that at all of the times

involved in this litigation and referred to in the trial,

or in the briefs, Mr. Parker was in the employ of, and

in the office of appellant. Such a statement could be

made only for the purpose of attempting to convince

this court that Parker was a disinterested party when

he was actually an employee of Hyland.

On page 87 it is stated:

"Smith was the head of the adjusters and what-

ever he did was agreeable to the others."

In appellant's opening brief it was stated in several

places that Smith represented all of the appellees.

When this was pointed out as a misstatement, counsel,

without one word upon which to predicate such a state-

ment, and contrary to the fact, incorporates the fore-

going in the brief.

On page 89 it is stated:

"Many serious mistakes of fact and law api)eMv

therein. As one instance of fact, we refer to the
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court's statement that 'if the quantity of mer-

chandise claimed to' have been obliterated, had

been in the factory at the time of the fire * * *

the building * * * would have been taxed with a

load beyond its capacity'. (V. I, p. 193.) Coun-

sel now admit that this statement, aroument, or

finding is erroneous. (Brief of Western Insur-

ance Co. of America, p. 186.) That such a preju-

dicial statement is not correct, removes the pre-

smnption of correctness from other statements in

the opinion."

Such a statement could not be otherwise than de-

liberate. The statement of the court quoted refers to

the question of the 100 tons of debris which we have

demonstrated in our briefs would have filled each of

the floors of the building to the same extent as the

model of the second floor which appellant so bitterly

attacks. This is discussed in detail on pages 82 to 85

of the brief of Western Insurance Company of Amer-

ica. It is true that we admit that Ave do not claim that

merchandise of the value of $132,000 would have over-

taxed the building, but immediately following this we

reiterate our claim that merchandise represented by

the claim of debris would have been more than the

building would have held.

Again, on page 91, we have another instance.

It will be remembered that we set forth on page

190 of the brief of the Western Insurance Company,

the following:

''Mr. Thornton. In addition to that I would
like to point out this fact : You ivill remember we
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have ashed for an examination of these very care-

fully kept 'boohs, hut so far we have been deprived

of any examination.

Mr. Schmulowitz. Evidently the Court thoun-ht

you were not entitled to an examination at the

time you asked for it." (Rep. Tr. pp. 31-33.)

(Italics ours.)

In an attempt to offset this, counsel would mislead

this court by referring to a portion of the testimony

of Hart, showing that when he was in the employ of

other parties in the fall of 1929 and made an investi-

gation for certain purposes in connection with use and

occupancy insurance, he was not prevented from look-

ing in the books. On this statement counsel would

have this court infer that appellees, who- were not in

any way connected with the use and occupancy insur-

ance, were permitted to examine plaintiff's books. As

a matter of fact, such an examination was not per-

mitted until after the trial had progressed for several

weeks, and then only under very distinct and positive

orders of the trial court.
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We respectfully submit that this court should, affirm

judgment.

Dated, San Francisco,

May 22, 1936.

H. A. Thornton,

Thornton & Watt,

Thornton & Taylor,

Attorneys for Appellees, Millers National Insurance

Company and Western Insurance Company of

America.

Redman, Alexander & Bacon,

Jewel Alexander,

Wm. C. Bacon,

R. P. Wisecarver,

Attorneys for Appellees, Duhuque Fire <& Marine

Insurance Company, National Reserve Insurance

Company, Minnesota Fire Insurance Company and

The Merchants Fire Insurance* Company.

Orrick, Palmer & Dahlquist,

Attorneys for Appellee, National Liberty Insurance

Company.

Long & Levit,

Percy V. Long,

Bert W. Levit,

R. P. WlSECAR\^R,

Attorneys for Appellee, Firemen's Insurance Com-

pany of Newark, New Jersey.


